
From: Herzog, Karen
To: Sara Kuhl; Kathleen Patten
Cc: Heather Laroi
Subject: Open records request from JS
Date: Tuesday, July 24, 2018 10:49:36 AM
Importance: High

July 24, 2018

Dear Katie and Sara,

This letter is to request the following records under the state's Open
Records Law (19.31-39, Wisconsin Statutes): 

Copies of any/all records pertaining to complaints of sexual
harassment against Pete Hill from the time Chancellor Kopper arrived
at UW-Whitewater (as provost, I believe, in 2010?) through her time
as vice chancellor, and in her current role. I've been told there have
been multiple investigations of sexual harassment complaints against
Mr. Hill since Ms. Kopper began working at UW-Whitewater,
including an investigation completed last spring by UW System
General Counsel Quinn Williams.

Please be aware that the Open Records law defines “record” to
include information that is maintained on paper as well as
electronically, such as data files, unprinted emails and text messages.
Wis. Stat. § 19.32(2). 

Please include, in addition to complaints and emails that pertain to
the cases, all investigation reports of findings, specific type of actions
taken related to the complaints, his current employment status/or
any restrictions placed on him, and details of any financial
settlements.

The Open Records law “shall be construed in every instance with the
presumption of complete public access consistent with the conduct
of governmental business. The denial of access generally is contrary
to the public interest and only in exceptional cases can access be
denied.”

If you deny my request, the law requires you to do so in writing and



state what part of the law you believe entitles you to deny my
request. Wis. Stat. § 19.35(4)(a). 

As you know, the law requires you to respond to this request “as
soon as practicable and without delay.” 

Thank you for your time and consideration. If you could pass this
along to UW-Whitewater's open records custodian, Sara, I would
appreciate it. 

Sincerely,
Karen Herzog 

Karen Herzog
Reporter 

  
Office: 414-224-2193
kherzog@jrn.com
Twitter: @HerzogJS
jsonline.com



From: John Dowling
To: Tomas Stafford
Subject: Fw: RE: Hill: Notice of retainer
Date: Thursday, July 13, 2017 8:07:54 AM

Tom - FYI

--- On Thu, 7/13/17, John Dowling  wrote:

> From: John Dowling 
> Subject: RE: Hill: Notice of retainer
> To: "Robert J Kasieta" <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
> Date: Thursday, July 13, 2017, 8:06 AM
> Sorry, Bob, but I cannot agree to written
> questions and answers.  I need to do this interview
> orally, face-to-face with Mr. Hill (and you, of course) so
> that I can follow-up and amend my questions as needed. 
> I'm sure you understand that.
>
> I think that your client and you will
> find my process to be very straight forward.  I have no
> agenda here and am not advocating for any particular
> result.  My job is simply to try to find out what, if
> anything, happened.  I can only do that by interviewing
> Mr. Hill in person.
>
> I look forward to hearing from you soon
> about scheduling the interview at a mutually convenient time
> and place next week
>
> Thank you, Bob.
>
>
> John Dowling.
>
> --------------------------------------------
> On Thu, 7/13/17, Robert J Kasieta
> <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
> wrote:
>
>  Subject: RE: Hill: Notice of retainer
>  To: "John Dowling" 
>  Cc: "Inbox" <add.task.10314143.188353102.3692bf57a1e27224@todoist.net>
>  Date: Thursday, July 13, 2017, 6:09
> AM
> 
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>  I did speak with Tom, John. He was
>  helpful, but frankly, some of our
> conversation left me with
>  more questions than answers because of
> the peculiar nature
>  of this matter.
>  
>    
>  I proposed to Tom that we might
>  entertain your questions in writing
> and that we could
>  respond in writing. Tom indicated that
> I should take up that
>  prospect with you.



>   Certainly, there is value in
> live interviews (follow up,
>  etc.), but in a case like this, where
> there is no meaningful
>  outcome to the investigation for my
> client, I much prefer
>  written questions and answers.
>    
>  Thanks for your consideration. I
>  am in Minneapolis today, but I will
> check email and I can
>  reach my client if necessary. bob
>    
> 
>    
>    
> 
>  
> 
> 
> 
> 
>  Robert J
>  Kasieta
> 
>  Managing Member, Kasieta Legal Group,
> LLC
>  
>  608-662-2286
>  |
>  rjkasieta@kasieta.com
>  |
>  www.kasieta.com
>  |
>   559 D'Onofrio Drive, Suite 222,
> Madison, WI 53719
>  |
>   Certified Civil Pre-trial and
> Trial Specialist by the
>  National Board of Trial Advocacy
>  
>    
> 
> 
> 
> 
>  
>  IMPORTANT: The contents
>  of this email and any attachments are
> confidential. They are
>  intended for the named recipient(s)
> only. If you have
>  received this
>   email by mistake, please notify
> the sender immediately and
>  do not disclose the contents to anyone
> or make copies



>  thereof.
>    
>  
> 
>    
> 
> 
> 
>  From: John Dowling
>  
> 
> 
>  Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2017 12:00
> PM
> 
>  To: Robert J Kasieta <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
> 
>  Subject: Re: Hill: Notice of retainer
>
> 
> 
>    
> 
>  Hi Bob - It's my
>  understanding that you have had an
> opportunity to explore
>  these issues with Tom Stafford.
> 
> 
>    
> 
> 
>  I would like to schedule
>  an oral interview of your client next
> week.  Please let me
>  know where and when would be most
> convenient for you and
>  your client.  As I mentioned before,
> I do not think that it
>  will require more than an hour.
> 
> 
>    
> 
> 
>  Thanks.
> 
> 
>    
> 
> 
>  John D.
> 
> 
> 
>  Sent from my iPad
> 



> 
> 
> 
>  On Jul 7, 2017, at 9:35 AM, Robert J
> Kasieta <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
>  wrote:
> 
> 
> 
>  John,
>   
>  It was great to talk with you this
>  morning. I’m glad you are well.
>   
>  As we discussed, I am very
>  respectful of you and UW here, and so
> is my client. I am
>  also duty bound to zealously represent
> my client’s
>  interests, of course. As attorneys, we
> are respectful of
>  process, especially
>   due process. There seems to me
> here to be a legitimate
>  process issue here because none of the
> people involved with
>  the investigation were acting as
> employees, students, or
>  agents of the UW at any material time.
> I need a few
>  questions answered before I can
>   responsibly counsel my client on
> whether to participate in
>  an interview.
>   
>  What is the authority for this
>  investigation?What rules/procedures of
> UW,
>  common law, or statutes apply to your
>  investigation?What are the possible
> outcomes of
>  the investigation? (That is, assume
> there is a finding of
>  some kind – which we vigorously
> assert would not be
>  justified --
>   what happens? What are the
> potential
>  consequences?)What are the
> consequences if my
>  client accepts my possible eventual
> counsel not to
>  participate in an interview?
>   
>  You kindly suggested that I could
>  contact Tom Stafford directly. I am
> not comfortable with



>  that because I am not sure, given the
> absence of structure,
>  what role he might play in any
> eventual decisions. So,
>   I am directing my inquiries to
> you.
>   
>  Please understand that my client
>  vehemently denies any wrongdoing. I
> would not want my
>  message to be misread as an expression
> of concern that there
>  was some wrongdoing here. The above
> questions come from me
>   as the lawyer, not from my
> client. I need this information
>  to be able to responsibly counsel my
> client.
>   
>  Thanks for your kind attention.
>  bob
>   
> 
>   
>   
>  <image001.png>
>   
>  Robert J. Kasieta
>  Board Certified Civil Pretrial and
>  Trial Specialist by the National Board
> of Trial
>  Advocacy
>  Kasieta Legal Group, LLC
>  559 D’Onofrio Drive, Suite 222,
>  Madison, WI  53719
>  (608)662-2286 Direct; (608)662-9977
>  fax;
> Website: www.kasieta.com; E-mail:  rjkasieta@kasieta.com
> 
>   
>  Information in this transmission is
>  intended for the personal and
> confidential use of the
>  designated recipient. 
>  
>  This transmission may be an
>  attorney-client communication, and is
> privileged and
>  confidential. 
>  
>  If the receiver of this transmission
> is
>  not the intended recipient or agent
> responsible for
>  delivering it to the intended
> recipient,
>  you have received this document in



>  error.  Any review, dissemination,
> distribution, or copying
>  of this message is strictly
> prohibited.
>   
>  <image002.png>
>   
>  https://www.lawyer.com/robert-kasieta.html
> 
>     
>  <image003.png>
> 
>   
>   
> 
>  From:
>  John Dowling 
> 
>  Date: Tuesday, July 4, 2017 at 12:44
> PM
> 
>  To: Bob Kasieta <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
> 
>  Subject: Re: Hill: Notice of retainer
>
> 
> 
>   
> 
> 
>  Thanks, Bob.  I look forward to
>  hearing from you.  Please feel free
> to call my cell phone -
>  608-217-4864.  I should be available
> just about any time
>  after 10:30 tomorrow (Wednesday).
> 
> 
>   
> 
> 
>  John D.
> 
> 
>   
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 
>  Sent from my iPad
> 
> 
> 
> 
> 



>  On Jul 4, 2017, at 11:18 AM, Robert J
> Kasieta <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
>  wrote:
> 
> 
> 
>  John,
>   
>  I
>  have been retained to represent Peter
> Hill regarding the
>  issue about which you contacted him. I
> will try to phone you
>  tomorrow to discuss. I’ll be in
> Detroit preparing
>  witnesses
>   to testify, but I will try to
> take a break during the day
>  to reach you.
>   
>  In
>  the meantime, I hope you are enjoying
> a pleasant holiday. It
>  will be good working with you again to
> address an
>  issue.
>   
>  All the best, bob
>  
>   
>   
>   
>  <image001.png>
>   
>  Robert
>  J. Kasieta
>  Board
>  Certified Civil Pretrial and Trial
> Specialist by the
>  National Board of Trial Advocacy
>  Kasieta
>  Legal Group, LLC
>  559
>  D’Onofrio Drive, Suite 222,
> Madison, WI 
>  53719
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
>  
>  This



>  transmission may be an attorney-client
> communication, and is
>  privileged and confidential. 
>  
>  If the
>  receiver of this transmission is not
> the intended recipient
>  or agent responsible for delivering it
> to the intended
>  recipient,
>  you
>  have received this document in
> error.  Any review,
>  dissemination, distribution, or
> copying of this message is
>  strictly prohibited.
>   
>  <image004.png>
>   
>  https://www.lawyer.com/robert-kasieta.html
> 
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> 
> 
> 
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> 
> 



From: John Dowling
To: Tomas Stafford
Subject: Fwd: Hill: Notice of retainer
Date: Tuesday, July 4, 2017 12:39:51 PM
Attachments: image001.png
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image003.png

FYI.

Sent from my iPad

Begin forwarded message:

From: Robert J Kasieta <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
Date: July 4, 2017 at 11:18:09 AM CDT
To: John Dowling 
Subject: Hill: Notice of retainer

John,
 
I have been retained to represent Peter Hill regarding the issue about which you
contacted him. I will try to phone you tomorrow to discuss. I’ll be in Detroit preparing
witnesses to testify, but I will try to take a break during the day to reach you.
 
In the meantime, I hope you are enjoying a pleasant holiday. It will be good working
with you again to address an issue.
 
All the best, bob
 
 
 

 
Robert J. Kasieta
Board Certified Civil Pretrial and Trial Specialist by the National Board of Trial
Advocacy
Kasieta Legal Group, LLC
559 D’Onofrio Drive, Suite 222, Madison, WI  53719
(608)662-2286 Direct; (608)662-9977 fax; Website: www.kasieta.com; E-
mail:  rjkasieta@kasieta.com
 
Information in this transmission is intended for the personal and confidential use



of the designated recipient. 
This transmission may be an attorney-client communication, and is privileged and
confidential. 
If the receiver of this transmission is not the intended recipient or agent
responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient,
you have received this document in error.  Any review, dissemination,
distribution, or copying of this message is strictly prohibited.
 

 
https://www.lawyer.com/robert-kasieta.html
   

 



Sexual Misconduct Reporting Form
Submitted on May 26, 2017 at 2:18:25 pm CDT

Type: 
Urgency: 

Incident Date: 
Incident Time:
Incident Location:

Sexual Assault
Sexual Misconduct Reporting

2017-04-03
April 2017
Off-campus, in the City of Whitewater Reported by

Name: 
Title: 
Email: 
Phone: 
Address:

Artanya Wesley
Dean of Students
wesleya@uww.edu
262-472-1533

Involved Parties

Complainant (victim) Female

Questions

Please specify the student status of the alleged complainant:
UWW Employee

Please specify the student status of the alleged respondent:
Non-Student

Were alcohol or other substances involved?
No

If yes, list the substance and which party used it:

If there was a weapon involved, list the type here:

Were there any injuries sustained? If so, please specify:

Did the victim receive medical care?
No

If the victim received medical care, list the location:

Please describe the incident with as much detail that you know:
I received a called from Beth John, Director of First Year Experience Office on Thursday, May 26th, 2017
regarding a student who needed to speak with me in person. I met with Beth John and  on Thursday,
May 26th and again on Friday, May 27th to collect all required information to complete the sexual misconduct
reporting form. 

 (student employee in the FYE Office) reported that 
 had some concerns with her employment environment. At the time of the incidents,  was a

.  disclosed to  she felt
uncomfortable when working at the chancellor's home. stated that in the month of April on multiple



occasions Pete Hill grabbed her butt. He has touched/rubbed other female student's shoulders, he would get
very close to them and state how pretty they are. reported that  is sure other student workers
have observed this behavior but are afraid to speak up about it.  stated  did report this to her
supervisor but she is unsure who exactly.  confronted Pete Hill about his behavior but she did not get
much of a response from him.  is unsure if the behavior ended after  confronted him. 

 graduated in .  reported that
 is very concerned about sending student workers to the chancellor's home in fear they will be

subjected to the same experience.

Complete this section if what you are reporting is a sexual assault.
Section 940.225 of the Wisconsin Statutes creates four degrees of sexual assault. The degrees are based upon the
amount of force used by the assailant and the harm done to the victim. First, second and third degree sexual assaults
are felonies; fourth degree sexual assault is a misdemeanor.  Please select the degree of sexual assault committed:
<B>Fourth Degree Sexual Assault: </b>Having sexual contact with a person without that person’s consent.
Sexual contact means any of the following: Intentional touching, by the complainant or defendant, either
directly or through clothing by the use of any body part or object, of the complainant’s or defendant’s
intimate parts if that intentional touching is either for the purpose of sexually degrading or humiliating the
complainant, or sexually arousing or gratifying the defendant.

The misconduct was reported to:
Dean of Students Office

Has the victim been informed of support services and of their rights?  Please visit UW-Whitewater Sexual Misconduct
Information for more information.
No

Does the victim wish to speak with a counselor?  Please call Counseling Services at (262) 472-1305 for more
information or to schedule an appointment.
Unsure

The victim wishes to initiate:
Unknown

If you have any other information, please provide it here:

Pending IR #00005554

Submitted from 140.146.130.118 and routed to Tim Fredrickson (Coordinator of Student Conduct)

Copies to: wesleya@uww.edu,reedp@uww.edu



From: Robert J Kasieta
To: Tomas Stafford; John Dowling
Subject: Investigation
Date: Thursday, September 14, 2017 9:59:52 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png

Gentlemen,
 
Can you please fill me in on what’s going on with the investigation?
 
Thank you for your attention. bob
 
 
 

 
Robert J. Kasieta
Board Certified Civil Pretrial and Trial Specialist by the National Board of Trial Advocacy
Kasieta Legal Group, LLC
559 D’Onofrio Drive, Suite 222, Madison, WI  53719
(608)662-2286 Direct; (608)662-9977 fax; Website: www.kasieta.com; E-
mail:  rjkasieta@kasieta.com
 
Information in this transmission is intended for the personal and confidential use of the
designated recipient. 
This transmission may be an attorney-client communication, and is privileged and
confidential. 
If the receiver of this transmission is not the intended recipient or agent responsible for
delivering it to the intended recipient,
you have received this document in error.  Any review, dissemination, distribution, or copying
of this message is strictly prohibited.
 

 
https://www.lawyer.com/robert-kasieta.html
   



 



From: Tomas Stafford
To: rjkasieta@kasieta.com
Cc: Tomas Stafford
Subject: questions re investigation
Date: Monday, July 10, 2017 5:33:40 PM

Hi Bob,
 
I returned your call and left a voice mail a few minutes ago.  I will be at a campus tomorrow and will
try to reach you again via cell phone.  The applicable UWW policy can be found at
https://www.uww.edu/system-harassment
It is my understanding that this complaint is being processed under the informal resolution section
of the policy. 
 
TLS
 
Tomas L. Stafford
General Counsel
University of Wisconsin System
Office of General Counsel
1856 Van Hise Hall
1220 Linden Dr.
Madison, WI 53706
tstafford@uwsa.edu
(608) 263-6105 phone
(608) 263-3487 fax
____________________________
The preceding e-mail message (including any attachments) contains
information that may be confidential, be protected by the
attorney-client or other applicable privileges, or constitute
non-public information.  It is intended to be conveyed only to the
designated recipient(s).  If you are not an intended recipient of
this message, please notify the sender by replying to this message
and then delete it from your system.  Use, dissemination, distribution,
or reproduction of this message by unintended recipients is not
authorized and may be unlawful.



From: John Dowling
To: Robert J Kasieta
Cc: Tomas Stafford
Subject: Re: Hill: Notice of retainer
Date: Friday, July 7, 2017 6:48:10 PM

Bob - I have forwarded your letter below to Tom Stafford, General Counsel for the UW
System and, therefore, legal counsel in this matter.  Tom suggests that you contact him to
discuss the issues.  Tom can be reached as follows:

Direct telephone - 608-263-6105
E-mail - tstafford@uwsa.edu

Thanks.

John D.

Sent from my iPad

On Jul 7, 2017, at 9:35 AM, Robert J Kasieta <rjkasieta@kasieta.com> wrote:

John,
 
It was great to talk with you this morning. I’m glad you are well.
 
As we discussed, I am very respectful of you and UW here, and so is my client. I am also
duty bound to zealously represent my client’s interests, of course. As attorneys, we are
respectful of process, especially due process. There seems to me here to be a
legitimate process issue here because none of the people involved with the
investigation were acting as employees, students, or agents of the UW at any material
time. I need a few questions answered before I can responsibly counsel my client on
whether to participate in an interview.
 

What is the authority for this investigation?
What rules/procedures of UW, common law, or statutes apply to your
investigation?
What are the possible outcomes of the investigation? (That is, assume there is a
finding of some kind – which we vigorously assert would not be justified -- what
happens? What are the potential consequences?)
What are the consequences if my client accepts my possible eventual counsel
not to participate in an interview?

 
You kindly suggested that I could contact Tom Stafford directly. I am not comfortable
with that because I am not sure, given the absence of structure, what role he might
play in any eventual decisions. So, I am directing my inquiries to you.
 



Please understand that my client vehemently denies any wrongdoing. I would not want
my message to be misread as an expression of concern that there was some
wrongdoing here. The above questions come from me as the lawyer, not from my
client. I need this information to be able to responsibly counsel my client.
 
Thanks for your kind attention. bob
 
 
 
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
Date: Tuesday, July 4, 2017 at 12:44 PM
To: Bob Kasieta <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
Subject: Re: Hill: Notice of retainer
 
Thanks, Bob.  I look forward to hearing from you.  Please feel free to call
my cell phone - .  I should be available just about any time



after 10:30 tomorrow (Wednesday).
 
John D.
 

Sent from my iPad

On Jul 4, 2017, at 11:18 AM, Robert J Kasieta <rjkasieta@kasieta.com>
wrote:

John,
 
I have been retained to represent Peter Hill regarding the issue
about which you contacted him. I will try to phone you tomorrow
to discuss. I’ll be in Detroit preparing witnesses to testify, but I will
try to take a break during the day to reach you.
 
In the meantime, I hope you are enjoying a pleasant holiday. It will
be good working with you again to address an issue.
 
All the best, bob
 
 
 
<image001.png>
 
Robert J. Kasieta
Board Certified Civil Pretrial and Trial Specialist by the
National Board of Trial Advocacy
Kasieta Legal Group, LLC
559 D’Onofrio Drive, Suite 222, Madison, WI  53719
(608)662-2286 Direct; (608)662-9977 fax;
Website: www.kasieta.com; E-mail:  rjkasieta@kasieta.com
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June12, 2018 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Quinn Williams 

General Counsel  
University of Wisconsin-System Administration  
 
Jennifer Lattis 
Senior System Legal Counsel 
University of Wisconsin-System Administration  

 
From:  Shannon E. Bradbury 
  Special Investigator 

 
Re: Investigation Report 

University of Wisconsin-Whitewater 
Office of University Advancement  

 
  

STATEMENT OF FACTS 
 
This investigation involving the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater (hereinafter UWW) 
was commenced pursuant to an oral report of inappropriate physical contact. The report 
was made in April 2018 b  

 
 

 
report alleges that she had been subjected to several incidents of unwanted 

and unwelcome touching by Alan “Pete” Hill (hereinafter “Mr. Hill”), the spouse of UWW 
Chancellor Beverly Kopper. Mr. Hill holds an unpaid appointment at UWW as “Associate 
of the Chancellor”.  In his capacity as the Chancellor’s spouse he is frequently asked to 
participate in fundraising, alumni and at athletic functions in a largely ceremonial 
capacity. 
 

reports three specific instances of inappropriate physical contact by Mr. Hill. 
 
Incident No. 1 
 

In 2015,  had an office on  
  On an unspecified day in 

2015, she states that Mr. Hill came to her office, shut the office door behind him, 
and walked around her desk to where she was.  He proceeded to give her a “full-
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body” frontal hug which she reported as lasting “too long”, and whispered 
something in her ear. Whatever he may have said was unintelligible or is 
unremembered.   
 
He then stepped back, made some small talk about work and left her office.   
 

Incident No. 2 
 

On another indeterminate date in 2015 (but within days or weeks of the first 
incident) passed by in the hall outside  

  Mr. Hill was seated at the conference 
table apparently reviewing stacks of documents. He waved  into the 
room. As she came into the room, she reports that he stood uncomfortably close 
(“invaded her body space”), took her face in his hand and leaned in for what  

 thought was going to be a kiss on the mouth.  She turned her head quickly 
and Mr. Hill kissed her on the cheek, again whispering something in her ear.  
 

At the time of these two incidents in 2015,  did not report them to anyone 
except to her own husband.  She and her husband were afraid of retribution that would 
jeopardize her employment. 
 
In 2016,  

believed that if she had fewer encounters with Mr. Hill, 
that he would leave her alone. This proved to be accurate until recently.  
 
In January 2018,  relayed these incidents to a colleague who was soon to be 
her supervisor,  

   reported them to the Chief of Institutional Policy 
and Compliance, Paige Smith.  then also talked to Ms. Smith but did not 
want to come forward unless there were further incidents with Mr. Hill.  
 
Incident No. 3 
 

On April  2018,  
 Among others, in attendance were  

Chancellor 
Kopper and her husband Pete Hill.   sat between 
Chancellor Kopper and Mr. Hill.  
 

 reported that not less than three times Mr. Hill 
grabbed her knee under the table and tablecloth.  In reference to ongoing work 
matters under discussion, he made some type of conversational point like “I can 
help you with that”, squeezing her knee each time. She reported that the 
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term or condition of an individual's employment …; ... or (3) such conduct has the 
purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work …or creating an 
intimidating, hostile, or offensive working …environment.  (Appendix A Pg. 10) 
 

Hostile Environment is defined to be:  
  

Hostile Environment: …(P)hysical acts …that are sufficiently severe or pervasive so as 
to interfere with an individual’s employment, …or participation in institution programs or 
activities and creates a working, …. program or activity environment that a reasonable 
person would find intimidating, offensive or hostile in nature. (Appendix A Pg. 8) 
 

UW System Administration also has a policy applicable to all UW institutions. Regent 
Policy Document RPD 14-2 Sexual Violence and Sexual Harassment  has definitions 
similar to those of the UWW policy,   
 

Sexual Harassment.  Unwelcome sexual advances, …and other verbal or physical 
conduct of a sexual nature …when (1) submission to such conduct is made …implicitly a 
term or condition of an individual’s employment …, or (3) such conduct has the purpose 
or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work …performance or creating 
an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or learning environment. [Adapted from 29 
C.F.R. § 1604.11 (1980)].] 
 
Hostile Environment.  A hostile work, …or program-related environment is created 
when one engages in harassment that consists of unwelcome …physical conduct 
directed at another individual because of that individual’s gender, and that has the 
purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work, …or program-
related environment or has the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with that 
individual’s work …performance.  Substantial interference with an employee’s work 
…performance or creation of an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work…or program-
related environment is established when the conduct is such that a reasonable person 
under the same circumstances as the …employee would consider the conduct 
sufficiently severe or pervasive to interfere substantially with the person’s work 
…performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work…environment. (…)  
 

Under Wisconsin law (Sex, sexual orientation; exceptions and special cases,  § 
111.36(1)(b), Wis. Stats.) employment discrimination because of sex includes the 
following actions by any employer or another person,  
 

(b) Engaging in sexual harassment; …or making …submission to …or permitting sexual 
harassment to have the purpose or effect of substantially interfering with an employee's 
work performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment. 
Under this paragraph, substantial interference with an employee's work performance or 
creation of an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment is established when the 
conduct is such that a reasonable person under the same circumstances as the 
employee would consider the conduct sufficiently severe or pervasive to interfere 
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substantially with the person's work performance or to create an intimidating, hostile or 
offensive work environment.  

 
Mr. Hill’s conduct towards  constitutes “unwelcome physical conduct of a 
sexual nature”, the submission to which may be considered implicitly a condition of her 
employment.  This physical conduct interferes with her ability to work. 
 
Mr. Hill’s conduct also meets the standard for creating a hostile work environment.  His 
physical acts have taken place frequently enough to be considered pervasive, and they 
interfered with  working environment so that she was trepidatious about 
every potential encounter. A reasonable person would find this behavior intimidating.  
 
Mr. Hill’s conduct is made more offensive because he holds a position of power over 

and over other employees at UWW due to his familial relationship with the 
Chancellor. Should anyone reject or rebuff Mr. Hill’s physical contact, there is always 
the unspoken presumption that the Chancellor could end that employee’s employment 
should Mr. Hill request it.  In this way, a harasser can continue his or her behavior long 
after he or she should have been found out because the targets are too intimidated and 
vulnerable to step forward.   
 
Is  report an isolated indication of inappropriate conduct on Mr. Hill’s 
part? 
 
No.   
 
Because of this investigation, another female employee of  

 reported a comment made to her by Mr. 
Hill at official function in February 2018 that made her “very uncomfortable”.   In this 
case, Mr. Hill put his hand on  lower back, pulled her closer to him and 
whispered a comment in her ear about her appearance (“You look really good, ).  
She said he used a “low and sexual” voice, and it made her very uncomfortable.  She 
did not report the incident at the time for fear of retaliation. 
 
She also stated that he “used to” call her things like “babe” and “sweetie” but has 
recently been more professional.   
 
In his second interview, Mr. Hill categorically denied that the above incident ever took 
place. 
 
It is worth noting that two additional females, one a current UWW employee and one a 
former UWW employee, were approached for comment on their reputed experiences 
with Mr. Hill.  Neither was willing to speak on the record for fear of retaliation and ruin to 
their careers. 
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CONCLUSIONS 

 
Mr. Hill is unlikely to change his conduct to meet the professional standards of 
UW-Whitewater.  
 
In his first interview, Mr. Hill did not express any remorse or take responsibility for 
inappropriate treatment of a female colleague.  Indeed, he did not appear to have much 
understanding of why this behavior would be inappropriate.  He didn’t remember the 
specific instances of making advances to  and only said he “probably” used 
terms like “honey” or “sweetie” to address professional colleagues.  He didn’t recall 
calling  anything like that.   
 
The standards for professional gatherings may be different in a small city or on a 
smaller campus like UW-Whitewater, than they would be in a larger city or campus.  In a 
smaller milieu where people are familiar with one another, greeting hugs may be more 
common than handshakes.  By all accounts Mr. Hill is a tactile person who frequently 
hugs rather than shakes hands with both men and women in professional gatherings.  
He himself said that that he greets alumni the same way he greets colleagues (“I don’t 
discriminate”). 
 
This does not explain walking into a female colleague’s office without invitation and 
giving her a long bear hug, or kissing her in a conference room.  It doesn’t explain 
touching a female colleague and making a suggestive comment about her appearance. 
And no informal standard of professional behavior encompasses grabbing a woman’s 
knee under the tablecloth . 
 
No one changes behavior that is unacknowledged, and there is no indication that Mr. 
Hill acknowledges his behavior.  Furthermore, there appears to be some pattern to this 
behavior, as  is not the only person to have been subjected to it. It is unlikely 
that Mr. Hill can or would amend his behavior to comport with the needs of the 
employer.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
¹ Among her duties as the Chief of Institutional Policy and Compliance, Ms. Smith was the Title 
IX Coordinator, to whom all incidents of sexual harassment were to be reported. 
 






